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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

MIDDLE DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

UNITED STATLS OFF AMERICA
versus :  CRIMINAL NO. 16-73-BAJ-RLB
BENJAMIN ROSENTHAL :
PLEA AGREEMENT

‘The United States Attorney’s Office for the Middle District of Louisiana (“the United
States”) and Benjamin Rosenthal (“the defendant”) hereby enter into the following plea
agreement pursuant to Fed. R. Crim. P. 11(c).

A. THE DEFENDANT’S OBLIGATIONS

1: Guilty Plea

The defendant agrees to enter a plea of guilty to Count Two of an Indictment charging
him with posscssion of child pornography in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2252A(a)(5)(B).

2 Sex Offender Registration Requirements

The defendant understands that by pleading guilty to possession of child pornography,
he will be required to register as a sex offender upon his release from prison as a condition of
superviscd release pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3583(d). The defendant also understands that
indcpendent of supervised releasce, he will be subject to federal and state sex offender
registration requircments, and that those requirements may apply throughout his life. The
defendant understands that he shall keep his registration current, shall notify the state sex

offender registration agency or agencies of any changes to defendant’s name, place of
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residence, employment, or student status, or other rclevant information. The defendant shall
comply with requircments to periodically verify in person his sex offender registration
information. The defendant understands that he will be subject to possible federal and state
penalties for failure to comply with any such sex offender registration requirements. If he
resides in Louisiana [ollowing release from prison, he will be subject to the registration
requirements of the State of Louisiana. The defendant further understands that, under 18
U.S.C. § 4042(c), notice will be provided to certain law enforcement agencies upon his
release from confinement following conviction.

As a condition of supervised release, the defendant shall initially register with the
state sex offender registration in Louisiana, and shall also register with the statc scx offender
registration agency in any state where defendant resides, is employcd, works, or is a student,
as directed by the Probation Officer. The dcfendant shall comply with all requirements of
federal and state sex offender registration laws, including the requirement to updatc his
registration information. The defendant shall provide proof of registration to the Probation
Officer within 72 hours of releasc from imprisonment.

3. Financial Information

The defendant agrees to fully and truthfully complete the financial statement provided
to him by the United States and to return the financial statement to the United States within
ten days of this agreement being filed with the Court. Further, the defendant agrees to
provide the United States with any information or documentation in his possession regarding

his financial affairs and to submit to a debtor’s examination upon request. Any financial
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information provided by the defendant may be used by thc United States to collect any
financial obligations imposed in this prosecution and may bc considered by the Court in

imposing sentence.

B. UNITED STATES’ OBLIGATIONS

1. Non-prosecution/Dismissal of Charges

The United States agrees that, if thc Court accepts the defendant’s guilty plea, it will

move to dismiss the remaining count of the Indictment after sentencing, and it will not
prosecute the defendant for any offense related to the offenscs charged in Indictment.

2. Motion for Third Point for Acceptance of Responsibility

‘The United States acknowlcdges that the defendant has assisted authorities in the
investigation or prosecution of the defcndant’s own misconduct by timely notilying
authorities of his intention to enter a plea of guilty, thereby permitting the United States to
avoid preparing for trial and permitting the United States and the Court to allocate their
resources efficiently. The United States therefore agrees that, if the Court finds that the
defendant qualifies for a two-level decrease in offense level for acceptance of responsibility
under USSG § 3E1.1(a) and, prior to the operation of USSG § 3E1 .1(a), the defendant’s
offense level is 16 or greatcr, the United States will move the Court pursuant to USSG §
3EL.1(b) to decrease the defendant’s offense level by one additional level. The United States
reserves the right to object to a decreasc in offense level for acceptance of responsibility
based on information received by the United Statcs after the effective date of this agreement,
including information that the defendant failed to timely submit the financial statement
requircd by Section A(2) of this agreement.
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C. SENTENCING

1. Maximum Statutory Penalties

The maximum possiblc penalty on Count Two is a term of imprisonment of not more
than 20 ycars, a fine of up to $250,000, or both, and a term of supervised releasc of at least
five years and up to life.

In addition to the above, the Court must impose a special asscssment of $100 per
count which is due at the timc of sentencing. Furthermorc, unless the Court determines that
the defendant is indigent, the defendant must pay an additional mandatory special assessment
0f $5,000 for his conviction on Count Two. The Court may also order restitution.

2. Supervised Release

Supervised release is a period following release from imprisonment during which the
defendant’s conduct is monitored by the Court and the United States Probation Office and
during which the defendant must comply with certain conditions. Supervised rclcasc is
imposcd in addition to a sentence of imprisonment, and a violation of the conditions of
supervised relcasc can subject the defendant to imprisonment over and above any period of
imprisonment initially ordered by the Court. If a violation of supcrvised release involves the
defendant’s commission of any felony criminal offense under chapter 109A, 110, or 117, or
section 1201 or 1591 or Title 18, United States Code, the defendant is subject to a term of
imprisonment of at least five years and up to life. For any other violations of supervised
release, the defendant is subject to a term of imprisonment of up to three years.

In addition to supervised release, the defendant will be subject to federal and state sex

offender registration requirements, which may apply throughout his lifc.
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3. Sentencing Guidelines

The Court will determine in its sole discretion what the defendant’s sentence will be.
While the Court must consider the United Statcs Sentencing Guidelines in imposing
sentence, the Sentencing Guidelines are not binding on the Court. The Court could impose
any senlence up to the maximum possible penalty as sct out above despite any lesser or
greater sentencing range provided for by the Scntencing Guidelines.

4. No Agreement Regarding Sentencing

Except as sct forth in this agreement and the supplcment to the plea agreement, the
United States makes no promises, representations, or agreements rcgarding sentencing. In
particular, the United States reserves the right to prescnt any evidence and information, and
1o make any argument, to the Court and the United States Probation Office regarding
sentencing.

5. Forfciture

The defendant admits that he owns the property identified in the Notice of Forfeiture
in the Indictment and that such property either contained visual depictions of minors engaged
in sexually explicit conduct, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2252A,
constituted or was traccable to gross profits or other proceeds the defendant obtained directly
or indirectly as a result of the above-charged offenses, or was used or intended to be used in
any manner or parl to commit or to promote the commission of such offenses. He therefore
agrees to forfeit his interest in such property and consents to the entry of orders of forfeiture

for such property.
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The defendant understands that forfeiture of his property will not be treated as
satisfaction of any fine, restitution, cost of imprisonment, or other penalty which may be
imposed upon him as part of his sentence. The defendant further understands that, separate
and apart from his sentence in this case, the United States may also institute civil or
administrative forfeiture proceedings of any propcrty, real or personal, which is subject to
forfeiture. The defendant agrees to waive his interest in the property identificd in the Notice
of Forfeiture in the Indictment in any such civil or administrative forfeiture proceeding.

The defendant agrees to fully and truthfully disclose the existence, nature, and
location of all assets and to fully and completely assist the United States in the recovery and
forfciture of all forfeitable asscts, including taking all steps as requested by the United States
to pass clear title to forfeitable assets to the United States. The defendant agrees to hold the
Unitcd States, its agents, and its cmployees harmless from any claims whatsocver in
connection with the seizure or forfeiture of property pursuant to the Court’s forfeiture orders.

The delendant hereby waives the following: (1) all statutory and constitutional
defenses to the forfeiture, including any claim that the forfeiture constitutes an excessive fine
or punishment; (2) any failure by the Court to ensure at sentencing that the defendant is
aware of the forfeiture or to incorporate the forfeiture in the judgment as required by Fed. R.
Crim. P. 32.2(b)(4)(B); and (3) any failure by the Court to inform the defendant of, and
determine that the defendant understands, the applicable forfeiture prior to accepting the

defendant’s plea.
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D. FACTUAL BASIS
The United States and the defendant stipulate to the following facts:
On September 24, 2016, the defendant, at his residence in Baton Rouge,

Louisiana, knowlIngly possessed videos and images, which he knew contained
depictions of minors engaged in sexually explicit conduct, and which had been

transported over the jnternet using a computer. More specifically, the defendant

possessed at least 200 videos on his computer, which depicted minors en aged

in sexually explicit conduct, that is, toddler and prepubescerr['jﬁ'ﬁﬂﬁaiales

masturbating and cngaged in oral and vaginal intercourse with adult males and

Jjuvenile males between the ages of nine and fifteen years old.

The defendant admits that, to the best of his knowledge and belief, the stipulated
statement of facts is true and correct in all respects. The United States and the defendant
agree that, had this matter gone to trial, the United States could have proved such facts. The
United States and the defendant further agree that such facts are sufficient to support
conviction of the offense to which the defendant has agreed to plead guilty. The defendant
understands that, by the terms of USSG § 6B1.4, the Court is not limited by the stipulated
facts for purposes of sentencing. Rather, in determining the factual basis for the sentence,

the Court will consider the stipulation, togcther with the results of the presentence

investigation and any other relevant information.

E. BREACH AND ITS CONSEQUENCES
1. Conduct Constituting Breach

Any of the following actions by the defendant constitutes a material breach of this

agreement:

a. failing to plead guilty to Count Two of the Indictment at re-
arraignment;
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Z.

representing, dircctly or through counsel, to the United States or the
Court that he will not plead guilty to Count Two of the Indictment;

moving to withdraw his guilty plea;

filing an appeal or instituting other post-conviction proceedings
not authorized in Section F(2);

disputing or denying guilt of the offcnse to which the defendant has
agreed to plead guilty or denying or disputing any fact contained in the
stipulated (actual basis;

concealing or disposing of assets with the specific intent of shiclding
such assets from forfeiture;

providing false, misleading, or incomplete information or
testimony, including financial information and tcstimony
provided pursuant to Section A(2), to the United States; or

violating the terms of this agrecment or the supplement to the
plea agreement in any other manner.

Consequences of Breach

In the event of a breach by thc dcfendant, the United States is rclicved of its

obligations under the agreement and the supplement to the plea agreement. In particular, the

United States may prosecute the defendant for any criminal ollense. In addition, any

statements and information provided by the defendant pursuant to this agreemcnt (or the

supplcment to the plea agreement) or otherwise, and any information and evidence derived

therefrom, may be used against the defendant in this or any other prosecution or proceeding

without limitation. Such statements and information include, but are not limited to, the plea

agreement itself (including the factual basis contained in Section D), the supplement to the

plea agreement, statements made to law enforcement agents or prosccutors, testimony before

a grand jury or othcr tribunal, statements made pursuant to a proffer agreement, statements
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madc in the course of any proceedings under Rule 11, Fed. R. Crim. P. (including the
defendant’s entry of the guilty plea), and statcments made in the course of plea discussions.
‘The defendant expressly and voluntarily waives the protection afforded by Fed. R. Evid. 410
as to any statements made by him personally (but not as to statements made by his counsel).
The defendant is not cntitled to withdraw his guilty plea.

3. Procedure for Establishing Breach

The Unitcd States will provide written notice to the defendant or his attorney if it
intends to be relieved of its obligations under the agreement and the supplement to the plea
agreement as a result of a breach by the defendant. After providing such notice, the United
States may institute or proceed with any charges against the defendant prior to any judicial
determination regarding brcach. However, the United States will obtain a judicial
determination regarding breach prior to using statements and information provided by the
defendant or any act of producing documents or items by the defendant pursuant to this
agrcement or the supplement to the plea agreement, or any evidence or information derived
therefrom, in its case-in-chicf in a criminal trial or in sentencing the defendant in this case.
The standard of proof in any proceeding to determine whether the plca agreement or the
supplement to the plea agreemcent has been breached is preponderance of the evidence. To
prove a breach, the United States may use (1) any and all statements of the defendant, (2) any
and all statcments of his counscl to the Court (including the United States Probation Office),
and (3) any representation by defense counsel to the United States that the defendant will not

plead guilty.
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F.  WAIVERS BY THE DEFENDANT

1. Waiver of Trial Rights

By pleading guilty, thc defendant waives the right to plead not guilty or to persist in a
not guilty plea and waives the right to a jury trial. At a trial, the defendant would have the
trial rights to be represented by counsel (and if necessary have the Court appoint counsel), to
confront and examine adverse witnesses, to be protected against compelled self-
incrimination, to testify and present evidence, to compel the attendancc of witnesses, and to
have the jury instructed that the defendant is presumed innocent and the burden is on the
United States 1o prove the defendant’s guilt beyond a reasonablc doubt. By waiving his right
to a trial and plcading guilty, the defendant is waiving these trial rights.

2. Waiver of Appeal and Collateral Remedies

Except as otherwise provided in this section, the defendant hereby expressly waives
the right to appeal his conviction and sentence, including any appeal right conferred by 28
U.S.C. § 1291 and 18 U.S.C. § 3742, and to challcnge the conviction and sentence in any
post-conviction proceeding, including a proceeding under 28 U.S.C. § 2241, 28 U.S.C. §
2255, or 18 U.S.C. § 3582(c)(2). This waiver applies to any challenge on appeal or in any
post-conviction proceeding to any aspect of the defendant’s sentence, including
imprisonment, fine, special assessment, restitution, forfeiture or the length and conditions of
supervised release or probation. The defendant, however, reserves the right to appeal the
following: (a) any scntcnce which is in excess of the statutory maximum; (b) any sentence

which is an upward departure pursuant to the Sentencing Guidelines; and (c) any non-
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Guidelines scntence or “variance” which is above the guidelines range calculated by the
Court. Notwithstanding this waiver of appeal and collateral remedies, the defendant may
bring any claim of incffcctiveness of counsel.

3. Waiver of Statute of Limitations

The defendant hereby waives all defenses based on the applicable statutes of
limitation as lo the offenses charged in the Indictment including those that the United States
has agreed to dismiss in Section B(1) and all offenscs that the United States has agreed not to
prosccutc, as long as such offenses are not time-barred on the effective date of this
agreement. The defendant likewise waives any common law, cquitable, or constitutional
claim of pre-indictment delay as to such offenses, as long as such offcnses are not time-
barred on the effective date of this agreement. The waivers contained in this paragraph will
expire one year after the date of any of the following: (1) a judicial finding that defendant has
breached the plea agreement; (2) the withdrawal of any plea entered pursuant to this plea
agreement; or (3) the vacaling of any conviction resulting from a guilty plea pursuant to this

plea agreement.

4, Waiver of Speedy Trial Rights

The defendant hereby waives any common law, equitable, or constitutional claim
regarding post-indictment delay as to the offenses charged in the Indictment including those
that the United States has agreed to dismiss in Section B(1). The waiver contained in this

paragraph will expire one year after the date of any of the following: (1) a judicial finding
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that defendant has breached the plea agreement; (2) the withdrawal of any plea entered
pursuant to this plea agreement; or (3) the vacating of any conviction resulting from a guilty
plea pursuant to this plea agreement.
G. EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

1. Effective Date

This agreement and the supplement to the plea agreement are not binding on any
party until both arc signed by the defendant, defendant’s counsel, and an attorney for the
United States. Once signed by the defendant, his counsel, and an attorney for the United
States, the agreement and the supplement are binding on the defendant and the United States.

2. Effect on Other Agreements

This agreement incorporates the supplement to the plca agreement which will be filed
under seal with the Court. In this district, the Court requires that a scaled supplement be
filed with every plea agreement regardless of whether the defendant is cooperating. The
supplement either states that the defendant is not cooperating or provides the terms of the
defendant’s agreement to cooperate. This plea agreement, along with the aforementioned
supplement to the plea agreement, supersedes any prior agreements, promises, or
understandings between the parties, written or oral, including any profTer agreement.

3. Effect on Other Authorities

The agreement does not bind any federal, state, or local prosecuting authority other

than the United States Attorney’s Office for the Middle District of Louisiana.
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4. Effect of Rejection by Court

Pursuant to Fed. R. Crim. P. 11, the Court may accept or reject this plea agreement
and the supplement to the plea agreement. If the Court rcjects the plea agreement and the
supplement, the plea agreement and the supplement arc no longer binding on the parties and
are not binding on the Court. If the Court rejects the plea agreement and the supplement, the
defendant will be given the opportunity to withdraw his plea and such withdrawal will not
constitute a breach of the agreement. If the defendant does not withdraw his plea following
rejection of the plea agreement and the supplement, the disposition of the case may be less
favorable to the defendant than contemplated by the plea agreement.

1. REPRESENTATIONS AND SIGNATURES

1. By The Defendant

I, Benjamin Rosenthal, have read this plea agreement and have discussed it with my
attorney. 1 fully understand the agreement and enter into it knowingly, voluntarily, and
without reservation. I have not been threatened, intimidated, pressured, or coerced in any
manncr. [ am not under the influence of any substance or circumstance that could impede
my ability to understand the agreement and its consequences.

1 affirm that absolutely no promises, agreements, understandings, or conditions have
been made, agreed to, or imposed by the United States in conncction with my decision to
plcad guilty except those set forth in this agreement and the supplement to the plea

agrcement.
I acknowlcdge that no promises or assurances have been made to me by anyone as to

what my sentence will be. I understand that representations by my attorney (or anyone else)
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regarding application of the Sentencing Guidelines and/or my possiblc sentence are merely
estimates and are not binding on the Court.

I have read the Indictment and discussed it with my attorney. I fully understand the

nature of the charges, including the elements.

I'have accepted this plea agreement and agreed to plead guilty because I am in fact
guilty of Count Two of the Indictment.

I am satislied with the legal services provided by my attorney and have no objection

to the legal representation I have received.

' | oare: 1) 6] 17

Benjamin Rosenthal
Defendant

2. By Defense Counsel

I'have read the Indictment and this plea agreement and have discussed both with my
client, Benjamin Rosenthal. who is the defendant in this matter. [ am satisfied that the
defendant understands the agreement and the charge against him. including the clements. |
am also satistied that the defendant is entering into the agreement knowingly and voluntarily:,
This agreement, together with the supplement to the plea agreement. accurately and

completely sets forth the entire agreement between the defendant and the United States.

&,’)\AA— DATE: 2‘_/10 /2-0‘7
achel Conner

Counscl for Defendant
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3. Bv the United States

We accept and agree to this plea agreement on behalf of the United States. T'his
agreement. together with the supplement to the plea agreement. accurately and completely

1ent between the defendant and the United States.

DATE: ﬁs / %

sets lorth the entire agr

J. Walter Green
United States Attorney
Middle District of Louisiana

DATE: 8 ﬁs r7

Assistant United States Attorney
Middle District of Louisiana

Benjumin Rosenthal Page 15 February 8. 2017



